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STATE OF ILLINOIS ) BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION

o yss ‘COMMISSION '
COUNTY OF COOK ) BN |

RoSe Yurik,

Petitioner,

S ys, o - o ' NOS. 16 WC 7214; 16 WC 7215
T | - "201wcc448"'-

' Alexran Brothers Medrcal Center
Respondent

ORDER OF RECALL UNDER SECTION 19( F)

Thrs matter comes before the Commlssron on 1ts own motlon to correct a clerlcal error in
the DGCISIOH and Opmlon on Rewew of the Comrmssmn ﬁled August 6,2020, sua sponte After
reviewing the Decision on Revzew the Cormmsszon recalls the Deczsmn for the purpose of
correctmg the clerlcal error. L : :

1T IS THERBFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Decxsron and Oplmon
.on Revzew dated August 6 2020 is hereby recailed pursuant to Section 19(ﬂ ' -

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that a Corrected Deczswn and
Oplmon on Revrew shali be 1ssued SImuitaneously w1th thzs Order ' '

DATED: .AUG 1'4 2['!2(]"

DLS/rm | - o .E)‘M"’Z Ofl }dwfwm) ..
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STATE OF ILLINOIS ) D Affirm and' adopt (no changes)
S ) S8S. L__I Afﬁrm with changes '

l_—_] Imured Workers Benefit Fund ($4(d))

' D Rate AdJustment Fund (§8(g))

COUNTY OF COOK ) D Reverse [ Second njury Fund (58(e)18)
- o - o D PTD/Fatal demed _
@ Modify: QS(]) credit _ lZ None of the above

BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COMMISSION -

' _ROSE YURIK
| Petitioner
Vs, - _ S ._ o : . | N_O 16WC7214&I6WC 7215
R R '_ : ' 201WCC448 '
_ I_ .ALEXIAN BROTHERS MEDICAL CENTER
Respondent

CORRECTED DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW

N Tlmely Petl‘non for Revzew havxng been ﬁled by Pet1t1oner and Respondent herem and
not;ce given to all’ parties, the Commission, after considering the ‘issues of casual connection,
medlcal expenses temporary ; total dlsablilty, permanent partial dlsa‘olhty, and Respondent’s §8(1)
credlt and being advised of the facts ‘and law, modifies the Decisions of the Arbitrator as stated
below and otherw1se atfirms and adopts the De0151ons of the Ar’oitrator which are attached hereto
and made a part thereof - - S - '

The Arbltrator ISSUEd two separate Dec1smns in Petltloner s consohdated cases, 16 wC .
7214 and 16 WC 721 5, both of which awarded Respondent a §8(_]) credit of $65,017.91. Followmg
a careful review of the entire record the Commission finds that awardlng Respondent the §8())
credit i in both cases was erroneousiy duphcatlve ‘The $65 017.91 in medical expenses relates to

the treatment Petitioner received after her December 12, 2015 work acc1dent and therefore, the 5

credit for thls amount corresponds only with 16 WC 7215. Accordingly, the Commission modifies
16 WC 7214 to remove the duplicative §8(j) credlt of $65 017.91 and finds that this credit was
properly attributed only once to 16 WC 7215

In all other respeets the Commissmn affirms and adopts the Deeisions of t'he Arbitrator.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Decisions of the
Arbitrator dated March 25,2019 are modified as stated herein. The Commission otherw1se afﬁrms
and adopts the Dec1810ns of the Arb1trator






- 16WC 7214 16 WC 7215
. _Page2 B

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent is not entitled to
' any §8(_]) credit under 16 WC 7214. The Commission ﬁnds that Respondent remams entttied to
the §8(]) credlt of$65 017 91 under 16 WC 7215 ' : . :

. IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petlttoner _ |
~interest unde:f §19(n) of the Act 1f any. : . __ '

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall have cred1t
for a]l amounts patd 1f any, to or on behalf of Pet1t1oner on account of said acmdentai 1njury

Bond for the removai of thls cause t0 the Circuit Court by Respondent is hereby ﬁxed at

*the su sum of $75,000,00. The party commencing the proceedings for review in the Circuit Court
- _'shall ﬁle w1th the Comm1531on a Notlce of Intent to Flle for Rev1ew in Czrcult Court '

tDATED:-_SEE"'”Et" ;:-' eeE -—

- -.DLS/met RO LS
' O 6/18/20

| '_ DISSENTING IN PART CONCURRING IN PART

1 concur wﬂh the Dec;sxon of the ma;orlty on aIl issues except for the nature and extent of
Petitioner’s low back injury. As to the award of permanent part1a1 dlsabﬂlty beneﬁts 1 respectfully
dissent from the De0151on of the rna;onty and ‘would have found that Petitioner sustamed a 20%
. 1oss of use of the person asa whole asa resuit of her December 12 201 5 work acc1dent '

L Followmg her second work acc1dent Petztmner returned to full duty work on September
16, 2016. Although Petitioner testified that she has since changed the way that she -performs her
_}Ob duties, she continues to work in her same pre-aec1dent posmon without any medlca1 restrictions
or formal accommodatlons She does not require any orthopedic device or back brace nor is she
currently taklng any prescnptlon med1cat10n Given that Petitioner was able to return to her regular
physically demanding JOb with no formal restrictions and Dr. Yadla noted that Petitioner had made
good progress post—surgery with resolved radicular symptoms, would have found that Petitioner
established permanent partial disability of 20% loss of use of the person as a whole. I would have
modified the award accordingly for the December 12,2015 acmdent ' -

DLS/met W O{JW
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. STATE OF I_-LL.IN OIS . _ " ) S ' N S R _ DInJured Workers Benefit Fund (§4(d))
S '_-)SS-_ R S - DRate Adjustmenti:und (gS(g))
' COUNTY OFM ) 3 _ ' ' o D Second In}ury Fund (§8(e)18)
' SRR S DU R &Noneoftheabove -

ILLINOIS WORKERS COMPENSATION COMMISSION
ARBITRATION DECISION ' RN

'ROSE YURIK el : R Case#IGWC7214

'-_'.'_Emp]oyeef’Pet_itio_r;er E
'V;. PO SRS i Consohdated cases 16 WC 7215
.'ALEXIAN BROTHERS MEDICAL CENTER :

: Employer/Respondent i B BN

An Applzcatzon for Adjusrment of Clazm was’ ﬁled in th1s matter, and aNonce of Hearmg was maﬂed to each i
party. The matter was heard by the Honorable MARIA BOCANEGRA, Arbitrator of'the C01nm1sszon, inthe -
cityof CHICAGO -on February 19 2019, After reviewing all‘of the evidence presented the Arb1trator hereby '
makes ﬁndmgs on the drsputed Issues checked below and attaches those fi ndmgs to this docume:nt I

-DISPU'IED ISSUES : o _ e o _
. Was Respondent operatmg under and subject to the Ilhno1s Workers Compensatlon or: Occupatmnal =
DrseasesAct‘? R RS S R

. Was there an: employee—employer reIahonsh:p‘? e S :
: . Drd an acczdent occur-that: arose out of and 1 m the course of Petltmner s empioyment by Respondent‘? '
D What was the date of the aecrdent'? s . : : : :
. Was tlrnely notlce of the accrdent gtven to Respondent‘7 L
' . Is Petltzoners current condttton of 111 bemg causally related to the 1nJury‘7
D What were Pet:tloners eammgs‘? e L :
. What Was Petmoners age at the tlme of the ace1dent‘?
_ D What was Petltroner s mantal status at the tune of the acmdent‘7 :
. Were the medlcal services that were prov1ded to Petltloner reasonable and necessary“’ Has Respondent
: patd all appropnate charges for all reasonabie and necessary medlcai servrces‘7 ' i
. What temporary benefits are in. dzspute‘? S R
1] TPD [ Maintenance = - Rl TTD
. What is the nature and extent of the mjury‘?
D Should penaltles or fees be 1mposed upon Respondent’?
- Is Respondent due any credlt”

0. D Other

ICArbDec 2/10 100 W. Randolph Street #8-200 Chicago, IL 60607 312/814-6611 Toll-free 866/352-3033  Web site: wwiw.iwee, il.gov
Downstate oﬁ‘ces Coliinsv n’Ie 618/346-3450  Peoria 309/671 3019 Roc:’tford 815/987-7292 Sprmaf'e!d 217/785-7084 :
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Yurik v. Alexian Bros. Med. Cur.,

16 WC 7214 2 i Py
20 3sf A #% F ’
QI3 C00448
FINDINGS : .

On (}c_téber 30, 2014, Rf_:spondent was operating under and subject {0 the provisions'of the Act.

On this dgte; an employéé-émploy_e_r relationship did exist between Petitioner and Res':pondent.

On this déte_, Pétitipner did sustain an accident that arose out of and in the course of employment.

Timely notice of this aécident was giveﬁ'to .Resp.qndent. | | |

Petitioner's current condiﬁon of 1ll-being is éausaily fe’iated to the accident.

In the year preceding fche ilnjury,. Peti‘_cioner carned $31,692.40; the average weekly wage was $609.47.

On the date of 'accfdent, Petitioner was 45 years of agé, married with 2 .dependem. children.

Petitioner has received all reasonable and necessary medical services. - o

Responéent has paid all appfopriate charges for all reasonable and néc'essary medical éervices.

Réspohdént shall be gi'vén. a'cr'edit' of $3,038.01 for TTD, $0 for TPD:, $0 fbf mainteﬁaﬁbe,’ and $0 for other

benefits, for a total credit of $3,038.01. Respondent is entitled to a credit of $65,017.91 under Section 8(j) of
the Act. . R : : ' : .

ORDER | | e
Respondent shall pay Petitioner temporary total disability benefits of $406.31/week for 6-5/7 weeks,
commencing October 30, 2014 to November 6, 2014, December 23, 2014 to December 24, 2014, February

19,2015 to March 29, 2015, and April 30, 2015 to May 4, 2015 as provided in Section 8(b) of the Act.
Respondent shall begivena credit of $3,038.01 for the payment of temporary total disability benefits paid.

Respondent shall not pay Petitjoner 'perrnanén't parﬁai disabiﬁty benefits because the injuries su§ta.ir.1éd' did not
cause Petitioner any disability. ' . o

RULES REGARDING APPEALS Unless a party files a Petition for Review within 30 days after receipt of this _décision, and perfects a
review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shall be entered as the decision of the Commission.

STATEMENT OF INT_EREST RATE If the Comimission reviews this award, interest at the rate set forth on the Notice of Decision of
Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment; however, if an employee's appeal results in
either no change or a decrease in this award, interest shall not accrue. o

3-25-2019

Date

Signature of Arbitrator

MAR 2 5 2018

ICArbDec p. 2
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- FINDINGS OF FACT
Petltloner was bom on Mayl 1968 (T 11) Followmg htgh school graduatron

'Petmoner attended college and eamed her license in practical nursing. /d. Petrtroner 18 CPR certl ﬁed and CNA :
eertrﬁed Ia’ at 12 Petltioner s entlre employment htstory has been m the health care ﬁeld Id L :

: Upon reeelvrng her hcense Petltroner worked at Lexmgton Nursmg Home and The

: Arbor of itasca ]d After ﬁve years of ernpioyment Petttroner began to Work for AEexran Brothers in 1993 as a . "
certrﬁed nursmg a551stant Asa certrﬁed nursing assistant, Pentloner was required to engagein phys1cal work
'such as’ pulhng and hftlng Id at 13 Pnor o begmnrncr employment W1th AIexran Brothers Petttmner testrﬁed

that she d1d not have any back issues. Id at 15

_ Before the Octo’oer 30 2014 Work m}ury, Petttroner testtﬁed that she sustamed back stra1ns Id at 16 On |
_March 1,1995 Petltloner felt a puthng sensation in her back as she was assrstrng a worker tummg a 250113 male
pat1ent (RX 2).0n August 27,2000 Petitioner. shpped and fell on her buttocks onan empty clear plastlc EKG
‘pad at work (RX 3). On December 31, 2006 Petitioner sustairied an injury. at’ work while liftinga patient. (RX
4) In regard to the above~referenoed mcrdents Petrtroner recerved minimal treatment all of which was brief and
conservative. Followmg these rnc:ldents Petltioner was able to contrnue performrng her: regular Job dutres '
Petitioner testified that she never-. expenenced any : accrdents or 111_]1.11’168 outside of her workplace 2d at. 19: As it
'relates to the above referenced mcrdents Petttroner never: ﬁied a workers compensatron clalm Wlth the Ilhnors :
.Workers Compensa’oon Cornn’nsston Id These 1nc1dents were also revrewed by Respondent’s Sectlon 12

-doctor See Rxl

: Pnor to the October 30 201 4 Work rnjury, Petltroner was not under the care of any health Care
professronal for her low. back Id Furthermore Petrttoner was not experrencrng any paln or problems w1th her
back and was not taklng any medlcatron or under any work restnctlons fcl at 20 : : _

On October 30 2014 Petttloner was performmg her reguiar work dutres when she pulled a 2501b patrent
Id. at 20-21 As Petrtloner was pulhng the patient up, she felt low back pam around the nndhne Id at 21 When
comparing this pam to her prior: 1ncrdents Petitioner stated “[i]t felt like, pressure ‘Tike, somebody was .
weighing: me down or sitting on- my shoulders like gnst wergtnng me down. 1t was a pressure pain.” /d. at 22
Furthermore Petltloner testified that she had not felt thrs type of pam in the past Id Petltroner notrﬁed her
supervrsor and recerved rnechcal care. Id _ SO R '

On November 20 2014 Petrtloner presented fo Bamngton Orthopechcs and came under the care of Dr
Richard Rab1now1tz (PX 1, Pg. 1-5). Petitioner complained of 1ow back pain- that was deep and dull and
radiated to her nght lateral thrgh Id. at 1. An MRIof the lumbar spme showed Grade I spondylohsthesm at the
L5-S1 ievel with diffuse bulging disc contributing to neuroforammal stenosis. /d. at 3. After this initial '
evaluation, Dr. Rabrnowﬁz recommended physzca} therapy and sedentary work/actrvrty Id at 4-5 Aﬁer Six
weeks of physwat therapy, Pet1troner drd not experzence any rehef in patn Id at 18 '

On February 19 2015 Petxtroner retnrned to Dr Rablnowrtz with ongomg Iow back pain. Jd. at 22. Dr
Rabinowitz ordered additional physrcal therapy and took Petitioner off work. /d. at 25. On February 25,2015
Petitioner received an ep1dura1 injection. Jd. at 30. Following the March 26,2015 appointment, Dr, Rabmowrtz '
reteased Petrtloner to’ retum to work fuli duty on Mareh 30, 2015 [d at 34 On ApnI 30 2015 Petltroner o

3
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retumned to Dr. Rabinowitz with increased back and leg pain. Id. at 36. After taking Petitioner off work from
April 30, 2015 to May 4, 2015, Dr. Rabinowitz released Petitioner to return to full duty work on May 4, 2015.
Id. at 38. Petitioner returned to full duty work on May 4, 2015, and testified that there was no change in her
work duties or responsibilities. (T. 26-27). ' ' S

~ For seven months, between May 4, 2015 and December 11, 2015 Petitioner was not receiving any
medical attention for her back. Id. at 27. Also, Petitioner was not taking any medication. Id. Petitioner did not
have any accidents or injuries either at work or outside of the workplace during this time period. Id.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
ISSUE (F)  Is Petitioner’s current ¢ondiiion of i_ll-beiﬁg _équs;tlly related to the fnj_m‘y?

" The Arbitrator incorporates the foregoing findings of fact aridbo’ncl_usibn's of law as :though.ﬁllly set
forth herein. Having considered all evidence, the Arbitrator concludes that Petitioner has proven by a
preponderance of the evidence that her condition of ill-being is causally related to her work accident of

10/30/14. In so finding, the Arbitrator relies on Petitioner’s credible testimony and on the treatment records of
Dr. Rabinowitz. - o

ISSUE (_K) What tempo_r*ary benefits _aré in dispute?

‘The Arbitrator incorporates the foregoing findings of fact and conclusions of law as thoﬁgh fully set
forth herein. Having considered all evidence, the Arbitrator concludes that Petitioner has proven by a
preponderance of the evidence that she is entitled to TTD as a result of her injuries.

. The parties stipulated that Respondent paid temporary total disability from October 30, 2014 to
Noyember_ﬁ,_Z_OM_,'Febmmfy 19, 2015 to March 29, 2015, and April 30, 2015 to May 4, 2015 totaling
$3,038.01. However, as a result of the subject dccident, Petitioner was also unable to work on December 23,
2014 and December 24, 2014. After obtaining an uriderstanding of Petitioner’s job duties and responsibilities,
Dr. Rabinowitz stated that she was unable to work on December 23, 2014 and December 24, 2014 due to her
back pain. Id. at 17. ' S ' . S

Therefore, the Arbitrator finds that _Respondent shall be given a credit of $3,038.01 for the payment of

temporary total disability benefits in this amount. The Arbitrator further finds that Petitioner is entitled to

receive temporary total disability benefits for October 30, 2014 to November 6, 2014, December 23, 2014,

Décember 24, 2014, and froim February 19, 2015 to March 29, 2015, and from April 30, 2015 to May 4, 2015.

Respondent request for non-occupational credit is denied as this claim, as payments were paid following the

date of the second accident. See 16 WC 7215 for that credit.
ISSUE (L) i What is the ﬂature'a_r_t'd extent afth'e injw'y?

The Arbitrator ihcbfporatés the foregoing findings of fact and conclusions of law as though fully set
forth herein. Having considered all evidence, the Arbitrator concludes that Petitioner has proven by a

preponderance of the evidence that she reached MMI for this accident and any claim for permanency is ripe for
ad_judiCationL ' R S o S '

On the date of the accident, Petitioner was a 45 years-old certified nursing assistant who had worked in

thé health care field her entire employment history. (T. 12). Following the October 30, 2014 accident, Petitioner
4
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underwent an MRI of the Iumbar spme whu:h showed Grade I spondylohsthe51s at the L5-S1 level with dlffuse B
bu}gmg disc contmbutrng to neuroforaminal stenosis. (PX 1, P.g. 3). At this time, Dr, Rabrnowztz recommended
physu:aI therapy and sedentary work/activity. Id. at 4-5. Afeer not experiencing a relief inpain’ after six weeks of
physical therapy, Dr. Rabinowitz ordered additional physrcal therapy and took Petitioner off of wwork. 1d at 22,
25 Aftera mmor setbaek Dr Rab1now1tz released Petltloner to return to fuli duty work on May 4, 2015 Id at

38.

. Petttloner returned to full duty work on May 4 201 5 and testlf ed that there was 1o ohan ge m her work
duties or responsrbthtres (T 26 27) : AP _ :

' Petztzoner testlﬁed that between May 4 2015 and December II 2015 Petrttoner d1d not receive any -
medical attention for her back 1d at 27. Petitioner was not taking any medication for her back. 7d More
rmportantly, Petltloner drd not have any ace1dents or mgunes etther at work or out31de of the workplace durmg

thzs tnne perrod ]d
Pursuant to Sectron 8 Ib of the Act the Arbitrator conszders the foliowmg factors

1. _ The reported Ievel of 1mpa:rment under the AMA Gu:des The Parues dld not offer into evzdence
. any impairment ratmgs and there was no evidence mdlcatrng elther party w1Shed or desired to offer o
such evrdence pursuant to subsectlon (a) The Arbltrator a551gn5 no werght to thrs fac:tor -

2. The occupaﬂon of the mJured emp}oyee Petmoner remains employed asa certrﬁed nursmg
- a531stant for the Respondent performmg her regutar duttes The Arbrtrator a351gns no werght to th1s

o faetor

3._ The age of the employee at the tune of mJury The Pettttoner was 45 years of age on the date of
~ - the accident. There was no evrdence presented regardmg the affect he1 aoe may have W1th reSpect to
dzsablhty The Arbttrator assrgns to Werght to thls factor ' ' i

4. The employee s future earmng capacrty Between the months of May 4 2015 through Deeember
11,2015, Petmoner was working full duty. There was no evidence indicating the Petitioner’s level of
earnings or earmng capacity have been adverseiy affected by the Oetober 30,2014 acc1dent The

'.Arbltrator assrgns no Wetght to thrs faetor

. Ewdeuce of dlsabrhty There 1s no medlcal ev1dence of drsablhty as it pertarns to the October 30,
_ 2014 mJury The Arbltrator assrgns the greatest we1ght to th1s factor. -

The Arbltrator ﬁnds no drsabrhty as it relates to the October 30, 20 14 m}ury grven that Petltloner
sustamed a subsequent injury to the same body part resultmg in a second claim. Therefore, any permaenancy
benefits will be awarded under that second claim. However, the Arbitrator incorporates by reference the
findings of fact and conclusions of law set forth in the companion case 16 WC 7215 that was consolidated for

hearing with the subject claim.
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STATEOFILLINOIS . ) - | [ mjured Workers' Bene £t Fund (§4(d))
| : L )SSs. N I:[ Rate Adjustment Fund (§8( )] '
COUNTY OF COOK ) | | |_] second Injury Fund ($8(e)18).
: . a e . None of the above *

ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COMMISSION
ARBITRATION DECISION '

ROSE YURIK Case # 16 wc 7215 |

Empioyee/l’etitioher_' '

Consohdated cases 16 WC 7214

V.-- S . . 2 .
ALEXIAN BROTHERS MEDICAL CENTER
Empfoyer/Respondent R _ B

An Apphcat:on for Ac{]usrment of Clazm was ﬁied in this matter and aNoz‘zce of Hearing was maﬂed to each
party. The matter was heard by the Honorable MARIA S. BOCANEGRA Ari:ntrator of the Comm1sszon in
the city of Chlcago on February 19, 2019 After: rev1ewmg all of the evidence presented, the A rhitrator -
hereby makes ﬁndmgs on the d1sputed issues checked be}ow and attaches those ﬁndmgs to this document |

DISPUTED ISSUES ' R _ |

A D Was Respondent operatmg under and subj ect to the IHH‘IO]S Workers Compensatzon or Occupatlonal '
steases Act‘? _ SR : N _ S

D Was there an employee»empioyer reiatxonsth‘? . :

D Did an acc1dent occur that arose out of and in the course of Petltzoner S employment by Respondent’7

D What was the date of the accident? -

D Was tlmely notice of the accident given to Respondent'? :

E’ Is Petltloner S Current condmon ofill- bemg eausally related to the mjury‘7

D What were Pet1t1oners earnmgs‘? . o

D What was Pet1t10ners age at the time of the acc1dent'?

[ ] what was Petitioner's marital status at the time of the accident?
- Were the medlcal services that were provxded to Petitioner reasonable and necessary’7 Has Respondem
-paid all approprlate charges for all reasonable and necessary medlcal services?

. What temporary benefits are in dxspute‘?
[TPD -~ - []Maintenance X] TTD

L. . What is the nature and extent of the injury?

M. D Should penalties or fees be imposed upon Respondent‘?
N. E] Is Respondent due any credit?

0. D Other

?"

ICArbDec 2/10 100 W. Randolph Street #8-200 Chicago, IL 60601 312/814-6611  Toll-free 866/352-3033  Web site: www.fwee.il. gov
Downstate offices: Collinsville 618/346-3450  Peoria 309/671-3019 Rockford 815/987-7292  Springfield 217/785-7084
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On December 12, 2015, Respondent was operating under and subject to the provision.s of the Act.
On this date, an employee-employer relationship did exist between Petitioner and Respondent.

On this date, Petitioner did sustain an accident that arose out of and in the course of employment.
Timely notice éf this accidefﬁ was given to Respondent.

Petitioner's current condition of ill-being is céusaﬁy related to the accident,

In the year preceding the injury, Petitioner earned $31,692.40; the average weekly wage was $609.47.
On the date of acéidént, Petitioner was 46 years of age, married Wiﬁ’l 2 dependent childi;én.
?etitionér'haS'féceiVed all reasonable and necessary medicai-sen'iées;

Re.spor.lder.lt has not paid all appropriate charges for all reaéonable and ﬁece_sséry medical services.

Respdndeht shall be given a credit of $0. for TTD, $0 for TPD; $0 for maintenance, and $4,496.28 for other

benefits, for a total credit of $4,496.28. Respondent is entitled to a credit of $65,017.91 under Section 8(j) of
the Act. o

ORDER
Respondent shall pay Petitioner temporary total disability benefits of $406.31/week for 16 weeks, commencing

12/15/15 through 12/22/15 and 4/19/16 through 8/1/16, as provided in Section 8(b) of the Act. Respondent

shall be given a credit of $4,496.28 for non-occupational disability benefits it paid to Petitioner from 5/3/16
through 9/30!1& R ' S

Respondent shall pay reasonable and necessary medical services of $32,538.23, as provided in Sections 8(a) and
8.2 of the Act. Respondent shall be given a credit of $65,017.91 for medical benefits that have been paid, and
Respondent shall hold petitioner harmless from any claims by any providers of the services for which
Respondent is receiving this credit, as provided in Section 8(j) of the Act. Respondent shall reimburse
Petitioner for out-of-pocket expenses totaling $1,070.01. R

Respondent shall Ipay Petition_ér peﬁnénent partial disability benefits of $365.68/week for 150 weeks, because
the injuries sustained caused 30% loss of the person as a whole, as provided in Section 8(d)2 of the Act.

RULES REGARDING APPEALS Unless a party files a Petition for Review within 30 daj/'s; a_ftér rece'ip'g of this decision, and perfects a
review in accordance with the Act-and Rales, then this decision shall be entered as the decision of the Commission. '

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commission reviews this award, interest at the rate set forth on the Notice of Decision of

Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment; however, if an employee's appeal results in
either no change or a decrease in this award, interest shall not accrue. : '

3-22-2019

Signature of Arbitrator Date

MAR 2 5 2019
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FINDINGS OF FACT 2 @ E i; %:3 ‘{% ‘% %
The Arbrtrator 1ncorporates by reference and adopts the ﬁndrngs of faets and conclusrons of law set forth
m the arbrtra‘uon decrsron rendered in the eompanron case, 16 WC 7214. ' : . :

On December 12, 201 5 Petltroner was strll employed at AIexran Brothers as a CNA, also known as a
pat1ent care tech. Later that night, Petitioner needed to relocate a crash cart. /d. at 28. In order to make the crash
cart lighter, Petitioner picked up a deﬁbnllator and put it on the counter. Id In transferring the deﬁbnliator to
the counter, Petitioner testified that she “feIt a pop, like, a rubber band snapping.” /d. Due to the Immense parn
she was “unable to relocate the crash cart. Id. at 29. Immedrateiy following the i injury, Petrtroner not1ﬁed the X
nurse and went to AIexran Brothers Emergency Department Id. When asked at arbitration whether the
symptorns Petltroner was expenencrng were anythrng she had expenenced before she testtﬁed [n}o It was so '
parnfui Icouldn t even walk It was excrucratmg parn a IO " d - S L _

o On December 12 2015 Alexran Brothers Emergency Department ordered Petrtloner to not return to
Work (PX 6, Pg. 5). On January 15,2016 Petitioner presented to her primary care physrcran Dr. ‘Palosha -
Ahmed Petitioner stated that she was earryrng a defibrillator from the cart to the counter. (PX3, Pg 1 1) The
wires got caught on the crash cart, and she was, strugghng to pull it to the counter. Id. As Petitioner twisted, she
felt a snap hke 2 rubber band Id. Followrng thrs appomtrnent Dr. Ahmed referred Petrttoner to Barnngton

Orthopedrc

o On February 11, 201 6 Petltroner presented to Bamngton Orthopedrc Specrahsts After examrnmg
Petrtroner, Dr. Anubhav J agadrsh recomrnended further diagnostic testing. (PX 1, Pg. 47. ) On February 19, 2016
: Petitioner had anMRI of the lumbar spine. A comparison of Petitioner’s February 19, 2016 MRI withher .~
previous dlagnosttc tests showed a grade 2 spondylolrsthesrs at L4-15 with worsened drsc space narrowrng PX

2, Pg 47) Dr. Jagadlsh recommended surglcal lnterventron Id at 41

On March 7, 2016 Petrtroner presented to Dr Sanjay Yadla for a second oprnron (PX 2 Pg. 4) Dr
Yadla oprned that Petitioner’s back pain ‘began after a work-related injury in October 2014 and was exacerbated
by another injury sustained on December 12, 2015 (PX 4, Pg. 30). Foitowmg an examination, Dr. Yadla
determined that Petitioner’s signs and symptorns are consistent with mechanical back pain and a right Iurnbar _
radiculopathy due to facet disease and spondyiohsthesrs at L3-4 and L4-5 levels. (PX 2, Pg. 4). Furthermore, the
February 19, 2016 MRI demonstrated a grade II spondylolisthesis at L4-5 and scvere bilateral facet arthropathy
at L3-4. (PX 4, Pg. 30).Dr. Yadla opined that her work and work-related i injuries contrrbuted to the :
degenerative disease at these levels. Id. Dr. Yadla opined that the pathology on imaging. had progressed at the
L3-4 level compared to an MRI performed on November 11, 2014. Id. Dr. Yadla recommended a Iurnbar fusion

(TLIF) atL3 to LS from a postenor approach (PX 2, Pg 4).

On Aprrl 19, 2016 Petxtloner underwent a transforammal lumbar Interbody ﬁlsron at L3 to L4, L4 to LS.
Id. at 9. Thereafter, Petitioner underwent physical therapy from May 16, 2016 through August 12, 2016, and a

work hardenmg prog;ram from August 15, 2016 to September 9, 2016

The surgical recor'nmendation given by Dr. Jagadish and Dr. Yadla were the first surgical
recommendations that Petitioner received in regard to her low back. (T. at 33). Petitioner was able to return to
work in a light duty capacity on August 1, 2016. (PX 4, Pg. 23). Roughly a month and a half iater Petitioner
resumed qu duty actlvrty on September 16 2016 (T. at 35) _ T

" On Septernber 28, 2016 Dr Babak Lami prepared a record review report for the Respondent (RX 1).
After a review of the records, Dr.-Lami opined that it is possible that lifting a patient on October 30, 2014
mcreased her preex1st1ng back condthon Id However Dr Lami belr eved that this was only a temporary
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aggravation of her preexisting chronic back condition. /d. In regard to the December 12, 2015 injury, Dr. Lami
opined that the mechanism of lifting a defibrillator is trivial an_d did not constitute an injury which aggravated
her chronic spondylolisthesis. /d. Dr. Lami concluded that the spinal decompression and fusion performed by
Dr. Yadla were appropriate, but unrelated to any of the work-related injuries. /d.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW -

ISSUE (F)  Is Petitioner's current condition of ill-being causally related to the injury?

Prior to the October 30, 2014 work injury, Petitioner testified that she sustained back strains. (T. 16). As
a result of these back strains, Petitioner recelved minimal treatment. All treatment Petitioner received was brief
and conservative. Following éach incident prior to October 30, 2014 Petitioner was able to continue performing
her regular job duties, and was never given any permanent restrictions.- :
On October 30, 2014 Petitioner sustained an injury while pulling a 2501b patient. Id. at 20-21. Petitioner
testified that she had not felt this type of pain in the past. Id. at 22. After notifying her supervisor, Petitioner
received immediate medical care. Id. : o :

Petitioner presented to Barrington Orthopedics and came under the care of Dr. Richard Rabinowitz. (PX
1, Pg. 1-5). Petitioner complained of low back pain that was deep and dull and radiated to her right lateral thigh.
Jd. at 3. Dr. Rabinowitz recommended physical therapy and recommended sedentary work/activity. Id. 4-5.
Following six weeks of physical therapy, Petitioner remained in pain. Id. at 18. Dr. Rabinowitz recommended
additional physical therapy and took Petitioner off work until the next appointment. d. at 25. On March 26,
2015, Dr. Rabinowitz released Petitioner to return to work full duty on March 30, 2015. Id. at 34, After having a
minor setback on April 30, 2015, Petitioner was again released to work full duty on May 4, 2015. Id. at 38.

Petitioner returned to full duty work on May 4,2015, and testified that there was no change in her work duties
or responsibilities. (T. 26-27). ' o

* After the October 30, 3014 work injury, Petitionér did not receive any permanent restrictions and was
able to Teturn to full duty work. More importantly, between May 4, 2015 and December 11, 2015 Petitioner
received no medical attention for her back. Id. at 27. Furthermore, Petitioner was not taking any medication, and
did not have any accidents or injuries either at work or outside of the workplace during this time period. Id.

~ OnDecember 12, 2015 Petitioner continued to work for Alexian Brothers as a CNA. After picking up a
defibrillator and using a twisting motion to put it on the counter, Petitioner testified that she “felt a pop, like, a
rubber band snapping.” Id. at 28. Petitioner testified that she had not experienced this type of symptom in the
past. Id. at 29. This testimony was unrebutted. _ ' :

Oﬁ_ De_cembef 12,2015 Petitioner presented to Alexian Brothers Emergency Department where she was

instructed to not return to work (PX 6. Pg. 5). Following a visit with Dr. Palosha Ahmed, Petitioner was referred
to Dr. Anubhav Jagadish at Barrington Orthopedics. ' S

Dr. Jagad'ish: recormnéndéd an MRI of the lumbar spine. As compared to Petitioner’s previbus MRI, the
February 19, 2016 MR1 showed a grade 2 spondylolisthesis at L4-L5 with worsened disc space narrowing. (PX

2, Pg. 24). Dr. Jagadish recommended surgical intervention. This was the first surgical recommendation
Petitioner received for her back. : .

The Arbitrator finds the causal connection opinion of Dr. Sanjay Yadla more compellihg than that of Dr.
Babak Lami and therefore assigns greater weight to the opinions of Dr. Yadla. Dr. Yadla opined that
Petitioner’s work injuries have contributed to her degenerative disc disease at those levels. Similar to Dr.
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J agadish fusmn surgery was recormnended Eventually, a 1umbar fusion (TLIF) at L3 and L5 from a postenor
approach was performed Dr. Yadla opmed that Petitioner’s pain began after a work- related injury in October
2014 and was exacerbated by the injury on December 12, 2015, Id. at 30. Dr. Yadla maintains that Pet1t1oner S
work and work~reiated injuries contributed to the degenerative disease at these levels which ultimateiy requrred
surgical intervention. /d. The February 19,2016 MRI demonstrated a progresszon at the L3 4level compared to
the MRJ{ performed on November 11, 2014 Id S : L o

Unhke Dr Yadla Dr Lam1 did not conduct a medlcal exammatzon of Petrtloner Rxl Dr. Lami
concedes it is possrble that the October 30, 2014 injury may have aggravated Petitioner’s preexrstmg back
condition. /4. His conclusion that the December 12,2015 accident was too trivial to cause an injury is not

supported by facts. Here, the symptoms she experrenced following the December 12, 2015 accident did not -

abate which creates a reasonable inference that the effects of the December 12,2015 accident were permanent
not temporary and not trivial. ‘Thus, the chrenolo gy of events, mechanism of i mjury and hlstory Of treatment
document a change in condition. ‘A second MRI of February 19,2016 demonstrated a change in the underlying
condition Wthh provides further support for Dr. Yadla’s opinion ‘that the accidents aggravated the underlying
condition, resultmg in the need for surgery Surgery was first discussed foitowrng this accident.  Dr. Yadla’s
explanatlon and conclusions are consistent with the change in Petitioner’s symptoms and conditions that "
followed the work accrdents and, in partlcuiar the accident of December 12 2015. Accordmgly, the A:bztrator
adopts the opmron of Dr Yadla in support of causal cormectlon ; ' _

The1efore the Arbrtrator ﬁnds causai connectron between the conchtlon of the Petltroner S Iow
bacldlumbar spme and the acc1dent of December 12 2015 S

ISSUE (K) What tempm ary benef its are m dtspute’ _
ISSUE (N) Whether Respondent is a'ue cmy cr edzﬁ -

There is no dtspute arnong the partres that rf there exists a causal connectlon between the acc1dent and
Petitioner’s condition of ill-being the period of incapacity from work extends from December 15,2015 through
December 22, 2015 and April 19, 2016 and August 1, 2016. The Petitioner’s testimony and medlcal records
confirm that the Petitioner was off work on account of the acc1dent and under medical care during the above-
mentroned time pemcds : o

Havmg determlned the ex1stence of a causal connectron the Arbttrator ﬁnds the Petlttoner 1s entltled to
have and receive from Respondent the sum of $406.31 per week from December 15, 2015 to December 22,
2015 and Aprﬁ 19, 201 6 to August 1, 2016 that bemg the perrod of temporary total dtsabrhty from work

The partres stlpulated the Respondent paid non- occupatlonal disability beneﬁts to the Petrttoner ina
gross amount of $5,844.12, which after taxes totaled $4,496.28. (PX 13). The benefits covered the period from
5/3/16 t0 9/30/16. The Respondent is entitled to a credit against the amount of TTD for the post-tax amount
received by the petitioner. Navistar Int’l T mnsp Corp v. Industrial Comm n (Dzar) 315111 App. 3d 1197
1206-08 (1-‘;t Drst 2000)

ISSUE (J) Were the medical services that were provided to Petitioner reasonable and necessary? Has
Respondent patd all appmprmte charges Jor all reasonable and necessaiy medrcal ser vices?

The Petrttoner introduced ev1dence that 1ndlcates her group health provrder paid med1ca1
b1lls assocrated w:th her work-acmdent n the amount of $65 017.91. Px7, Ax2.

: The Arbttrator finds the rnedtcal services prov1ded {o Petrtroner were reasonable and necessary and
therefore, finds Respondent shall be grven a credtt under Section 8(j) of $65 017. 91 for medxcal beneﬁts that

48
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have been paid as set forth in Petitioner’s Exhibit #7, and shall be responsible for satisfying all medical
expenses, and shall hold Petitioner harmless from any claims by any providers of the services which Respondent
is receiving this credit, including: Equian, Automated Benefit Services and Respondent as provided in Section

8(j) of the Act.

The Petitioner also introduced evidence of medical bills which remain outstanding consisting of Exhibits
8-12:

Barrington Orthopedic Specialists, Ltd. $7.62

ATI Physical Therapy $30,152.78
Alexian Brothers Medical Center $2,263.18
Elk Grove Radiology, S.C $114.65
Total:- L . o o 83253823

The Petitioner also introduced evidence of the following out-of-pocket expenses totaling $1,070.01.

Having found the existence of a causal connection between the condition of Petitioner’s low back and
the accident of December 12, 2015, the Arbitrator further finds the Respondent is responsible for payment of the
medical bills set forth in Exhibits 8-11 pursuant to Section 8(a) and 8.2 of the Act, and further that Respondent
shall hold Petitioner harmless for said bills and expenses as set forth in Exhibits 8-11 totaling $32,538.23. In
addition, Respondent is responsible for reimbursement to the Petitioner for out-of-pocket expenses totaling
$1,070.01.

ISSUE (L)  What is the nature and extent of the injury?

On the date of the second accident, Petitioner was 46 years-old. Petitioner’s entire employment history
has been in the health care field. Id. at 12. For the past 25 years, Petitioner has been employed as a certified
nursing assistant, also known as a patient care tech, at Alexian Brothers. As a certified nursing assistant,
Petitioner is required to engage physically demanding work that includes pulling and lifting Id. at 13.

The December 12, 2015 resulted in a lumbar fusion at L3 to L5 from a posterior approach. Following
Petitioner’s surgery on April 19, 2016, Petitioner underwent physical therapy from May 16, 2016 to August 12,
2016. Petitioner resumed her customary duties following her full duty release, but testifies she continues to
experience pain and discomfort while performing her regular duties which she described as physically
demanding. The Arbitrator concludes that Petitoner has reached maximum medical improvement for this injury
and that any claim for permanency is ripe for adjudication.

Pursuant to Section 8.1b of the Act, the Arbitrator considers the following factors:

The reported level of impairment under the AMA Guides: The Parties did not offer into evidence any
impairment ratings and there was no evidence indicating either party offered such evidence. The Arbitrator
assigns no weight to this factor.

The occupation of the injured employee: Petitioner remains employed as a certified nursing assistant,
also known as a patient care tech for the Respondent performing her regular duties. However, Petitioner is
taking Aleve twice a week for the continued low back pain caused by her job. Petitioner testified that sitting
and walking for long periods at work cause pain. Petitioner also notices a sharp pain in her lower back while
lifting at work. The Arbitrator takes note and assigns some weight to this factor.
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The age of the employee at the time of injury: Pet1t1oner was 46 years of age on the date ofaccident. Her
age suggests perhaps a somewhat Iong work life expectancy remalmng The Arbitrator a531gns some we1ght to

this factor.

The empioyee s future eammg capacny no evidence showed her eammgs were tmpan'ed The
Arbttrator as&gns no weight to this factor : : _

Ev1dence of disablhty Petltloner s fusion surgery was on Apnl 19, 2016 To date Petmoner expenences
fow back patn Petitioner’s surgeon, Dr. Yadla, opined that her work and work related injuries contributed to the
degenerative disease at L4-5. When asked what Petttzoner nottces about herself performing work act1v1t1es she
stated “{wlell just if I walk for: a long perlod of time, it starts aggravatmcr my back. And if you want me to rate
the pain from one to 10, 1 would save five. When I’m at work, it’s higher, eight, nine.” /d. at 40. Petitoinet’s
testimony is consistent with her’ medical records. See, Px4: 1,23, Px5:5. The evidence shows the Petitioner’s
accident aggravated and/or exacerbated her pre-existing DDD that thzs resulted in a two level fusion from L4 to
S1 after failed conservative care, that she was released full duty and returned to her regular empioyment and that
she experlences d1fﬁculty w1th prolonged walkmg The ArbItrator ass1gns the greatest welght to th1s factor :

~ Forall the reasons stated the Arbltrator conciudes the Petlt;oner 18 entttled to have and receive from the |
Respondent the sum of $365.68 per week for a penod of 150 weeks, as provided in Section 8(d)(2) of the Act,
as the accident of December 12, 2015 resulted ina permanent loss of use of a person as a whole to the extent of

30%.






'STATE OF ILLINOIS )

COUNTY OF COOK )

© BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION |

- SCOTT CLUFF,

- Petitioner,
v No. 16WC31391
o 3 ' 20 IWCC 0434
_VILLAGE OF WHEELING
o Respondent i
ORDER

_ Motwn to Recall pursuant to Sectlon 19(f) of the Act was ﬁied by the Peﬂtmner on
August 7,2020. The Comrmssmn finds that a clerical error ex1sts in its Decision and Opmmn on
Rewew dated August 3, 2020 in the above captzoned matter _ - :

_ IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Demsmn and Opmion
on Review dated August 3, 2020, is hereby vacated and recalied pursuant to Sectlon l9(f) for
correcuon ofa ciencal erTor contamed therem S :

CITIS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that a Corrected Demsmn and'
Opmlon on Review shall be 1ssued sunultaneously w1th th1s Order. .

DATED: AUG ’i ? 202“

Mai‘c Parker

mp/dk
68



16WC31391

~ 20IWCC0434
Page [ o
. 'STATE OF ILLINOIS ) l___l Affirm and adopt (no changes) D Injured Workers” ‘Benefit Fund (§4(d)}
) SS_. R D Aff" rm wath changes ' ' l:l Rate Adjustment Fund (§S(g)}
COUNTY OF COOK )y 1:] Reverse | L] second Injury Pund (§8(e)18)
o B o L] proFatat deniea
|Zl Mod;fy . _ : . None of the above

BEF ORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COMMISSION '

SCoTT 'C'_L'UFF, -

- Petitioner, L
vs. " No. 16 WC31391
- | 20IWCC 0434
YILLAGE OF WHEELING

Respondent

| CORREC.TED DECISION AND OPINIO'N ON REVIEW f

Tlmely Petztlon for Rev1ew havmg been ﬁled by the Petitloner herem and notice g1ven to

“all partles the Commission, after cons1dermg the 1 1ssues of duration of TTD, post- Aprll 6,2017 .

:medtcal expenses “PPD benefit rate, and nature and extent and bemg advised of the facts and
~ law, modifies the Decision of the Arbitrator as stated below and otherwise affirms and adopts the
' Demsmn of the Arbztrator Wthl’l is attached hereto and made a part hereof b

L FINDINGS OF FACT

PetItloner tes’uﬁed that he was employed as a ﬁreﬁghter/EMT on July 30, 2016 When he
stepped from the fire engine into a hole, twisting his left knee. Although in significant pain, he
was able to complete his work shift. ‘He reported his accident, obtained medical advice from
Medcor, and contmued to work full duty. On August 23, 2016 Petitloner sought treatment at

F The - Commlssmn notes that this case was consolidated with 16 WC 30632 wluch related to a January 1, 2014
accident in which Petitioner suffered a left knee strain. The sole issue in that case was nature and extent and the
Arbm'ator awarded Petltloner 1% loss of use of the left leg. Ne;ther party appealed that award :
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NorthShore Omega on referral from Medcor He was assessed as havmg a possrble rnenlscal tear_
and was adv1sed to rest wear a knee sleeve and begm a home exererse prograrn

NN On August 28 2016, Dr Susan Plazza at NorthShore Omega assessed Petltloner wzth a
left MCL strain and placed him on light: duty work. - A September 1; 2016 MRI revealed a
complex tear: «of the medial meniscus and trrcompartmental ehondromalama Petitioner was
referred to Dr. Steven Levin, an orthopedrc surgeon at NorthShore Orthopedlcs and, remamed on
hght duty wrth sedentary work restrlctlons Respondent accornrnodated Petltloner s restrlctrons

B Dr Levm performed a ieft knee partlal rnedrai memscectomy/synovectomy on September -
30, 2016. Petitioner returned to work at light/sedentary duty on October 5, 2016 and continued

~ post- operatrve physical therapy through December 29, 2016. Petitioner continued to complam of
" knee pain ‘and ‘was. dragnosed by Dr. Levin as havmg pateliofemoral syndrome and prepatellar ;

‘bursitis. - A ‘cortisone ‘injection prowded temporary relief, and. the doctor ordered: another MRI. .
The Ianuary 12; 2017 MRI showed a complex multidiréctional tear of the medial ‘meniscus, a
new deep chondral ﬁssurrng of the femoral trochlea, and moderate Jornt effusion w1th synovms o
~Dr. Levrn recommended a mlcrofracture procedure, debrldement ‘and a3 possrbie broucartrlage
implant. Thls proeedure was never performed due to Respondent s refusal to authorrze surgery o
Petrtxoner was taken off work on or about February 25 2017. e : :

- At ReSpondent s request Dr. Joshua Alpert performed a §12 exam on February 27 2017 '
- Dr. Alpert found - Petitioner’s ﬁrst surgery was approprrate but. oprned that : his - ongomg
.cornpiamts ‘were consrstent w1th pre-existing articular eartrlage changes (probabiy arthrrtis) and
~not due to the ‘work i ‘injury.. He disagreed with Dr. Levin’ s plans for a. microfracture procedure . -
and recommended 1nstead 1nject10ns and physical therapy. Dr. Alpert did not believe Petitioner
“would be able to return to his job as ﬁreﬁghter/EMT due to his pre-exrstmg arthritis. ‘He opined
that Petitioner could return to work for desk work and walkrng activities only, whlle he received
a cortisone injection and two weeks of physrcal therapy At that pomt Dr. Alpert beheved any o
work restrlctlons wouId be due to arthrrtrs and not his work mjury ' : :

Respondent termlnated Petrtroner 8 TTD payments as of Apr11 20 2017 Petruoner then
began receiving sickness and - acmdent beneﬁts Petmoner was referred by his prlmary care
physrcran to Dr Steven Gross for a second oplnron ' : . :

_ Dr Gross evaiuated Petrtroner on May 24 2017 He rev1ewed Petrtroner s MRIs,
determrned that the meniscal tear had not been fully resected in the prior surgery and proposed a
revision arthroscopic surgery, .On July 10, 2017, Dr. Gross performed a partial medial
meniscectomy and shavmg chondropiasty He found damaged cartllage and femoral trochlea and
a large meniscal tear, ‘which he believed was the source of Petitioner’s ongoing knee pain.
Petitioner’s pre-operative pain resolved by July 25, 2017, and Dr. Gross released him to return to

work hght duty on August 29, 2017

Dr. Michael Hanna performed a return to duty evaluatlon of Petitioner on Septernber 12,
2017 and found him ready to return to fuli duty work, but Petltloner chose to retire on September _

13 2017 '
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118 CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
A. Temporary Total Dzsabzlzty

The Arbrtrator awarded Petltzoner temporary total drsabrhty beneﬁts of $1217.94 per
week commencmg July 10, 2017, the date of his second surgery, _through August 29, 2017, the
date he was released to light duty.  On ‘appeal, Petitioner argues that he is- entitled to ‘benefits
from April 21,2017 through August 28, 2017, ‘with the dlsputed period belng 1oetween Aprll 21,
2017 and July 10, 2017 totaling 11 and 4/7ths weeks The Arbitrator found no evidence in the
record rndlcatlng whether Petrtroner d1d or did, not work lrght duty durlng the dlsputed tlme

perrod

. Evaluatlng the record the Commlssron ﬁnds that Petltloner has estabhshed entl‘dement to
addttlonal TTD benefits. Respondent s Exhibit 7 is Petitioner’s timesheet which- indicates he
was -off work -during the “disputed time perrod and through ‘August 29, 2017. - Therefore, the
Commlssron concludes that Petitioner proved that he was ‘temporarily totally disabled from Aprri
21, 2017 through August 29,2017, a. perrod of 18 and 5/7ths weeks: The Commission modifies
‘the award ‘to ‘reflect the approprlate period ordering that: Respondent shall pay Petrtloner _
temporary total dlsablh‘ry beneﬁts eomrnencmg Aprrl 21 2017 through August 29 2017 2 '

B Post~Aprzl 6 2017 Medzcal lels

_ _ The Ar’oltrator determmed that Respondent had pard all reasonable and necessary medlcai
'expenses wrth no fmther Ilabrlrty as to outstanding bills. However, several medical bills incurred
after April 6, 2017 remain unpaid by Respondent. Respondent contends that it has ‘paid all
reasonable and neoessary charges and that the Arbitrator’s decision regardlng the medlcal bills
should be affirmed. The Commission views the evrdenee drfferently and notes that the
Arbitrator specrﬁoaily concluded that Petitioner’s second surgery was reasonable, necessary and
related - to his accident. - He- also awarded TTD ‘benefits - through August 29, 2017. ° The
Comrmssmn agrees that the seeond surgery was reasonable necessary and reiated to Petltroner 'S

work acczdent

The Cornrmssron also notes that prior to arbrtratron the partles submltted their request for
hearmg form at whleh point Petltloner cialmed that Respondent was liable for all outstanding
medical bills listed on Petitioner’s Exhibit 1b with the exception of five treatment dates that
Petitioner admitted were not related Respondent checked the box for “Respondent agrees ”
Arbitrator’s Exh1b1t 2. : : .

Although Respondent s counsel later stated on the reeord that he was dlsputmg all post—
April 6, 2017 medical expenses, the request for hearing form was not amended at the time of the
hearing. Section 9030.40 of the Commission Rules provides that the request for hearing “shall

 The parties did stipulate to a $10,000.00 advance by Respondent and the Arbitrator properly acknowEedged that
Respondent was entitled to a credit for that amount applicable only in this case. _
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be filed with the Arbltrator as the st1pulat10n of the partles and a settlement of the que:stions in
dispute in’ ‘the case.” 50 il Adm. Code §9030.40. Representations made on the request for
hearing are binding on the parties. Walker v. Industrzal Comm’n, 345 11l. App. 3d 1084, 1088
(2004). Respondent is bound by 1ts agreement with Petrtroner s claim of rts l1ab1hty for all

related medlcal expenses : : : : o

Based on all of the foregomg, _and under §§8(a) and 8.2 of the Aet the Comnnsswn finds
 that Respondent is llable for all related medrcal expenses including all related post-Aprli 6, 2017
expenses, -all medrcal bills paid any group health insurer,* and all Petrtloner s payments to

' medrcal prov1ders l1sted in Petltroner S Exlnbzt lB - :

C PPD Rare :

: The Arbttrator awarded Petltioner PPD at $755 22 which he ‘oelreved was the statutory'
‘maximum for the date of injury. However, the actual statutory maximum- rate was $775.18.
-Thus the Comrmssron modtﬁes the award to reflect the correet rate of $775 18 '

D, Permanent Parz‘zal Dzsabzlzty

: _ The Arbitrator awarded Petltroner 20% loss of lse of the left leg (43 weeks. at $755 22
~per. week) As discussed. above the Commission finds that the PPD rate should be $775 18 and
- has 'so° “modified ‘the award Petitioner ‘seeks further, alternative relief from the ‘Arbitrator’s
- permanency award: (1) a com’omed award of 25% loss of use of the left leg for the two
consolidated cases at the PPD rate of $775.18; or (2) 20% loss of use of the left leg at $775.18
per week for 43 weeks for 16 WC 31391 and 1% loss of use of the left leg at $721 66 per week
for 2 15 Weeks for 16 WC 30632 ' : : _

As noted prev1ously in thls optmon the Arbttrator S Deerslon in 16 WC 30632 was not
appealed. Therefore, the Commission may not consider any objectrons to that decision or
modify that decision in any way. The Commission afﬁrms the Arbrtrator S award of 20% loss of
use of the left leg at the modrﬁed rate of $775 18 ' N :

In all other respects, the Commrssron afﬁrms and adopts the Dec1srons of the Arbrtrator

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSiON that the DeCISlon of the
Arbitrator filed August 5, 2019, is hereby modrﬁed as stated herein and otherwise afﬁrmed and

adopted.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitioner
the sum of $1,217.94 per week commencing April 21, 2017 through August 29, 2017 totalmg 18
and 5/7ths weeks as provrded under Section 8(b) of the Act.

3 The Arbitrator found that Respondent faded to prov1de a suffi cient bas1s on wh:ch to award credit under Sectron

: 80)
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RO IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the award of permanent
pamal dlsabakty of 20% Ioss of use of the left leg is modlﬁed as to the rate only. Respondent
shall pay to Petltloner the sum of $775. 18 per week for a pertod of 43 weeks as provxded in
§8(e) of the Act ' * : : . . S

: 1T 1S FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall pay to the
Petmoner the reasonable and necessary medmal expenses mcurred for treatment, mciudlng the
| post-—Apr;l 6 201’7 treatment all sums pald by any group health insurer, and Petitioner’ s out—of-
_ 'pocket expenses as documented in Petltloner s Exhlbit 1B and as prov1ded under §§ S(a) and 8. 2
o of the Act and subject to the medtcal fee schedule S S - '

: IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent Shali pay to
'Petmoner mterest under §l9(n) of the Act 1f any.

: IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shaIi have credlt
: for all amounts pald if any, to.oron behalf of Petitioner on account of said a001dental m;ury The_ .
: partzes have stlpulated to a $10 (}00 00 advance pald by Respondent to Petltloner L

Pursuant to §19(f)(2) of the Act every county, mty, town tOWIlShlp, mcorporated v1lIage
.schooi district, body politic or mumolpal corporation against, whom the- Commission shall have

- rendered an award for the payment of money shall-not ‘be requ1red tofile a bond to secure the ) ._ _

g _payment of the award and the costs of the proceedings in the court. _Therefore, 1o appeal bond is

L set in this case. “The party commencing 1 the proceedings for review in the Clrcult Court shali ﬁle

- w1th the Commlsswn a Notlce of Intent to Flie f01 Rev1ew in Clrcun: Court S
DA_TED: : AUG .1 _7 2029_ -
6-07/09/20
‘mp-dak -

R

Wd";@w

Deborah L. Slmpson
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STATE OF ILLINOIS ) BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS CO’\/IPE\ISATION

' 2 )Ss _ g COMMISSION SRR _
C_OUN_TY O_F_LA_SALLE' ) SRR s

Lori .Laidlaw, _
- Petitioner,

s o NOS. 12wc33795

20 IWCC 419

._State of Illmms Department of Correetzons B
e Respondent S

ORDER OF RECALL UNDER SECTION 19( F)

A Motlon to Correct Clemcai Error pursuant te Sectlon 19(f) of the thms Workers '

. Compensatmn Act to correct anerror in the Decision of the Commission dated July 24, 2020,
- having been filed by Petltmner herem and the Comrmss;on havmg con31dered sald Motlon hereby
' -grants sald Motxon S R T : :

IT IS THEREF ORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Order dated J uly 24,
_'2020 is hereby reealled pursuant to Sectlon 19(f) . ' . _

R IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that a Corrected Order shan be
1ssued snnultaneously with thls Order " :

DLS/m | | Webared N Mempair )

46 ' ' - Deborah L. Simpson
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STATE OF ILLINOIS Yy D Affirm and adopt (no S E:] In_]ured Workers Benef;t Fund -
L : co .| changes) IR (V) I '
. R A ) 8S. | [ Affirm with chancres 10 Rate Adjustment Fund (§8(o))
COUNTY OF LaSA_LLE o } o X Reverse Acc:1den 1 O] Second Injury Fund (QS(e)I 8)
_ E - . R L [:]PTD/Fataldemed : _ .
C] Modify Cho_ose dir_ection _ E] None of the above '

BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS COMPENSATION COMMISSION

._ LORI LAIDLAW
' -_Pett_tzo_ner, | o

| | iy : R : ‘No: 12 WC 33795
ol SR o 20 IWCC 419

Sl STATE OF ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

Respondent

> CORRECTED DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW

T;mely Petltlon for Rewew havmg been ﬁled by the Petttioner herem and no‘ﬁce gwen to all
' parties ‘the Commzss:on after eon51derzng the issues of acc;dent causal connection, occupational
disease; medical expenses, temporary total dlsa‘ozhty, and permanent. partial dlsablhty, and bemg advised
of the facts and law, reverses the Decision of the ‘Arbitrator, finds that Petitioner sustained her burden of
proving she suffered a repetitive trauma accident which caused current condlttons of Iil-bemg of her
nght arm’ and nght hand and awards beneﬁts Z ' > :

I FINDINGS OF FACT
A Background and Acczdent _

Petzttoner test1ﬁed that on .Tuly 23 2012 she worked for Respondent as superv1sor of the bureau
of 1dent1ﬁca‘ﬂon ‘She was initially hired by Respondent in 1984 as a correctional officer (“CO”) She
moved to the bureau of identification in 1993 full time. ‘Whilea CO, Petitioner was assigned tothe
bureau often to fill in. Petitioner described the office in ‘which she worked in Dixon to be a long office
with a counter measuring about chest high. Inmates are on the other side of the counter and she -
ﬁngerpnnted them. It was determined that the counter was about four and a half feet htgh All
individuals coming into the famhty were fingerprinted. :

Petitioner explamed that ﬁngerprmtmg required that she first cut down the ﬁngerpnnt sheet to fit
into a card using a large paper cutter fitted with a large blade. She also used the paper cutter to cut up
old IDs. - After cutting down the fingerprint page, she explamed that one would “have to roll the thumb
in the ink, and then {] rotl the thumb on the ﬁngerprmt card and [] go on eaoh ﬁngers {szc} aII 0
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"ﬁngers roll in the 1nk and then roll on the card Then Petitioner explained that one would _place fui_l
handprmts at thebottom : S .

- Petmoner testtﬁed that there are 14 total motions in the process of ﬁngerprmtmg, but that
number must be doubled because it is done in the ink and then on the card. She estimated that she
ﬁngerpnnted 40 1nd1vrduals a day on average. Petitioner also had to use hole punchers for mug shots of
“gach inmate to be transferred She: explamed that 1nd1v1duals being ﬁngerpnnted tended to try to force
 their fingers down inthe mk and on the’ paper S0 she had to lift their fingers up to get a good print.

- Sometimes inmates were uneooperatrve which also made ﬁngerpnntmg more d1fﬁcult In'addition,

. 'Petmoner made IDs 1ssued reports assem‘oled and “dlsessembled” ﬁles and took DNA samples

On Juiy 23 2012 Petltloner began gettrng “eleetnc shocks” in her wnsts and hands and

- expenenced pain, whde rolhng fingerprints.” Besides ﬁngerpnntmg, as the supervisor, she had’ additional
paperwork in terms of evaluations, training, approvmg time off etc Pet1t1oner testlﬁed that there was,
also paperwork assoerated Wrth every mcommg mmate R : : : -

: On Cross exammation Petltroner testlﬁed that maybe in 1995 she was eiected pre&dent of her
R umon Iocal 11 2010 she took several months of leave for union 'ousmess and, whlle she did not know
_ how long she was off, she was back ‘at work ﬁngerpnntmg inmates and makmg ID cards every day n-

. -2012 Petitioner also testified that she had an assrstant at that ttme Barry Ogden who Would assrst her
in the ﬁngerprlntmg and ID processes : '

B Medtcal Treatment o

As her condmon worsened she sought medrcai attent1on w1th Dr Rrsha Raven The medlcal
: records reﬂect that Petitioner presented to Dr. Raven, her pmmary care physician, on August 1,2012
'reportlng three weeks of nght—elbow pain radlatlng to her lower arm and hand. - She reported no known
injury but ¢ repet:twe stress of ﬁngerpnntlng at work, better on weekends Petztioner smoked a paek of
' cagarettes a day and was counseled on smokmg eessatzon : -

Petztloner saw Dr Raven on August 3, 2012 She authored a letter relatmg to Petltloner S -
treatlnent and work status addressed to Respondent Therem Dr. Raven noted that Petitioner was to be
off work until August 6,2012 and that she might need to take some time off work for physwal therapy
Notably, she stated that Petltloner “has carpal tunnel and tenms el‘oow due to repetmve monon of
ﬁngerprlntlng and 1t is causmg numbness of hand and pam : :

The August 6 2012 “Irntlal Workers Compensatlon Medlcat Report” from Dr. Raven notes that
Petitioner experienced “3 weeks of right elbow pain Radiating to lower arm and hand. stiffness As well.
On July 23rd pt was ﬁngerpnntlng And Felt sharp pain from elbow to [right] thumb.” She also reported
pain opening doors and lifting or staphng, with improvement on the weekends. Dr. Raven : '
recommended physrcai therapy, use of support, and limited actmty in the short term. Dr. Raven stated
that repetitive use may increase Petitionet’s problem and therapy may allow improvement. Dr. Raven
estimated that Petitioner may return to work without restrictions on September 14, 2012. Until then Dr.
Raven 1mposed restrictions to arm thstmg if Pet1t10ner felt pain. :

! Respondent did not call Mr. Ogden as a witness.
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; On September 14 2012 Petrttoner retumed to Dr Raven for seasonal affectrve dtsorder and
follow up for right-arm pain from repetrttve use injury. Dr ‘Raven diagnosed “tennis + golfex’s elbow”
and “ﬁngerprmter s arm, ” Petltloner was mstructed to use NSAISDS as needed use braces, zand apply
ice. RS : :

The medtcal records reﬂeet that Petztroner underwent physrcai therapy from August 24 201 2
- through September 12, 2012 and from March 13,2013 through June 7, 2013.: During that tinre, she
reported a consistent mechamsm of injury wrth an onset of symptoms at work Specrﬁcalty, she -
reported first noticing. patn in her nght elbow and wrists in ‘mid July of 2012 and that, when rothng
fingerprints, she felt the most patn Petlttoner 5 treatment was hrmted to her rrght hand and she is rtght-

. _hand domtnant

_ On March 4, 2013 Petttroner presented to KSB Hospttal s Prompt Care department for rtght
elbow/forearm’ pain for at least six months. She had been using a “TE band” without much bene_ﬁt Dr.
: Lyrnan Tternan, dtagnosed nght eprcondylrtts and prescnbed Norco Predntsone and Ibuprofen S

_ Four days Iater on March 8, 201 3 Petrttoner followed up wrth Dr Raven reportmg that her rrght
tennis elbow was worsening which seemed to increase with work. Petitioner also informed Dr Raven
that she had gone to KSB’s prompt care department a few days earlier and that she had been prescrrbed

‘Norco and Prednisone, buit she did not want to take such medications. Dr. Raven advised her to'take =
Aleve touse a brace, and prescrlbed physrcal therapy Petitioner reported her: patn was better aftera
couple of Weeks of physrcal therapy but then she Went back to work and her patn returned '

_ On March 27 2013 Petrtroner presented fo Dr. Thornas Hernandez a KSB Hospltal Orthopedtc
surgeon reporttng seven, ‘months of rlght-etbow pain. She also reported that she worked “at a prison and
does a Iot of repetttrve wrist extensron acthtres 1nvolv1ng ﬁngerprlntmg and computer work » Onher.
questronnalre Petitioner reported that pain went from her elbow to fingertips while rothng ﬁngerprtnts
X-rays of theri ght elbow were normal.. However, on physrcal examination Dr., Hernandez noted
positive pomt tenderness to palpation about the right lateral eptcondyte and reproductton of pain wrth
wrist extension that was more pronounced with elbow extension than elbow flexion. ‘Dr. Hernandez -
dragnosed right lateral eprcondylttls and recommended an injection, which Petitioner declified, and Dr
Hernandez thought was a reasonable decrsron He provrded a brace and prescrrbed physrcal therapy

; On Aprll 26 201 3 Petltroner returned to Dr Raven reporttng that her patn was tess on Frldays
after physrcal therapy Before Frlday physrcal therapy she reported that her pain was 4/1 0, it was 1-2/10
after therapy with TENS, and 6-7/10 on Monday when she returned to work. Dr. Raven imposed work
restrictions taking Petitioner off work unless she could do filing only. In a letter directed to Respondent,
Dr. Raven noted that Pet1ttoner was 10 be off work frorn April 26 2013 to May 10, 2013 due to her
repetrttve use mjury

On May 13 2013 Petttroner returned to Dr. Raven and reported her patn was rnuch better with
TENS, physical therapy, and two weeks off work. She continued to have right lower arm tenderness.
Dr. Raven recommended she take NSAIDS as needed, wear her brace and use ice. Petitioner was again
placed off Work by Dr. Raven on May 13, 2013 due to her repetitive use injury. Dr. Raven allowed
Petttroner to return to work effectrve May 14, 2013 w1th hmltatlons as Petltloner was able
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The followmg year on November 17, 2014 Petttloner presented to Dr. Chrlstopher Rhyne at
KSB Hospltal for follow up for an unreiated condttlon and he also noted she. was being treated for
hypothyroidism. Petitioner asked questions about treatment for chronic wrist and forearm pain
- :secondary to repetitive use injury from rol!mg ﬁngerpnnts ‘She had physzcal therapy prevzously and
took two weeks off work; both of which resulted in nnprovement Petttioner did not want any additlonal
- 'physrcal therapy for her bllateral CTS at that tlme and was adwsed to Contmue usmg her braces g '

C Respondent s Sect:on ] 2 Emmmaz‘ton Reports and Deposztton T estzmony of Dr F ernandez :
On September 2, 2016 Respondent sent Petltlon to a Seetron 12 rnedlcal exammation wzth Dr

N Femandez Petitioner reported the sudden onset of pain at the right elbow Iaterally whlle ﬁngerprmtmg _'
at work. - She felt a “sharp stabbing pain” at the lateral epicondyle extending down into the handand - =

3:'wnst Petmoner reported that she felt her ‘symptoms ) would get better but actuaily got worse.. Squeezmg L

a stapler and ‘writing were causing her. pain. She further reported she developed numbness and tingling -
.-inthe hand and: ﬁngers Dr. Fernandez noted that an incident report and a witness report contamed the .

same hlstory he reeexved from’ Petltloner She was treated eonservatwely with sphntmg and physmal

: -_:therapy, but she did not have m;ectrons an EMG, or MRI. ‘Petitioner demonstrated how she took

fingerprints, whtch she did for 30 years. It “appeared to mvolve muttlple d1g1ts in"both hands mc}udmg

*palm prints, in ‘which she would be: palm down, *“rolling the finger’ back and forth with pressure ” She
reported: she. performed these functions repeatediy throughout the day. Her. dutles also included -
__'assem‘ohng and: reassembimg ﬁIes She would: aiso staple and un—staple papers on a falrly repeated ba51s :

- Petitioner: repozted overall her. pam has 1mproved since “she had: to retire” and hasn’t performed her:

“work activities in the last sixteen months Currently, she reported 2/10 pam at rest anci 8/ 10 pam w1th
heavy aet1v1ty She had thyr01d d1sease S : _

_ Dr Femandez concluded that Petrttoner exhlblted symptoms conmstent with ep1condyhtls and :
CTS Her subjectlve compiamts were consistent with his objective findings.- He opined that Petitioner’ s
30 years.of work was a contributory cause of her conditions based on her desertptzon ofherwork -
activities due to their frequency .and duration. He noted that he did not have an official job descnptton
and his opzmon held unless he recewed a “better contrad1ctory dESCI‘lptIOn regardmg her work - L
activities.” If Petitioner did not receive any addltronal treatment, Dr. Fernandez beheved that Petitloner -
would be at maximum medlcal 1mpr0vement (MMI) However, he thought mjecttons in both the carpa} _
tunnel and elbow would be reasonable, along with. stretchmg exercises. If Peutroner dld not :mprove :
with these addltlonai eonservatlve treatments surgery could be consuiered AN -

At Respondent ] request Dr. Femandez 1ssued an addendum report on March 28, 201 7 He
noted that he was provided “what. appeared to be timesheets® related to apprommately three years.” Dr.
Fernandez noted he wasn’t sure “of the exact timeline i in terms of years those were reﬂectmg He was
also informed after his examination of Petitioner the positions she held during her career.” Respondent
also provxded information that for three years union activities constrtuted a substantial partof
Petitioner’s work and a descrxptlon of Petitioner’s job activities as ﬁngerprmt technician supervisor.
Dr. Femandez noted that in retrospect 1t was “somewhat surprising” that at the time of his examination

*The t1mesheets prowded to Dr. Ferna_ndez were not submitted into evidence.
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'Petrtroner “stxll had these resrdual symptoms and compiamts” after ret1r1ng nearly a year and a half
arher Wlth the beneﬁt of add1t10nai mfonnatron Dr Fernandez answered querzes

_ Dr Fernandez S d1agn051s rematned the sarne eprcondyhtls and CTS but he noted agam that it
-was “somewhat surprlsmg” that Petitioneér’s symptoms did not’ unprove after retirement. He also

' indicated that the lack of srgnrﬁcant improvement would mrhtate against work act1v1t1es causmg the -

_condrtlons He partlcuiarty cited the eprcondyhtrs which is not permanent ‘Also, on the issue of -

"-causataon Dr. Fernandez 1nd1cated that the job descnp’non3 he was provrded showed more varied o

activities and his initial i impression | that she was spending all her time: ﬁngerpnntmg and assemb]mg/de- o

E assembhng ﬁtes was inaccurate. He 1no. Ionger believed the nature of Petitioner’s work was sufﬁment to '

- constitute an: aggravatmg factor in her condmons He noted her co-morbid factors as. welI Dr. _

_ _-'_Fernandez believed that prospectwe treatment could 1nc1ude an ‘EMG and MRI and m}ectlons Any _

- current restrictions from her:abilityto work would be based on her subjectwe comp!amts The MRI and :
' -_'.EMG could determme whether there is. any ob}ectrve ’oasrs to hmrt Pet1t10ner s work actwttze:s RIS

- N Respondent called Dr Femandez asa wrtness and he ga\fe testnnony at an ev1dence deposrtton
" taken. on October 20, 2017 Dr. Femnandez testified that he'is a board-certified orthopedic surgeon. He _'
exammed Petitioner in August 2016 and issued a repoz’t He aiso dlscussed her job activities with her.
- Dr. Fernandez testified that he understood that, essennaily, Petitioner was a techmcran for DOC. She
_had various act1v1t1es but they’ concentrated on ﬁngerprmtlng and processmg ﬁles Wthh she d1d for
_about 30, years She demonstrated the ﬁngerprrntmg process.” It was his impression that she was domo

e _that act1v1ty “fairly. constantly ”: She. aiso engaged in “assembhng” and “unassembhng” files and -

By _“staphng” and “un~staphng, “atso ona farrEy constant or repeated basis.” Later, he got a job descrrptlon

h “which included the _]Ob activities Petitioner. descnbed but on aless frequent basrs than Petitioner .

_ ;asserted Accordrng to the ]Ob descrlptron she did 1ess ﬁngerpnntmg and more paperwork Aﬁer he
' recerved thlS mformatlon Dr Fernandez 1ssued an addendum report ' e :

= Dr Fernandez acknowledged that ?etrtroner had lateral eplcondyhtls and CTS and his oprmon
-'d1d not change with the new information. ‘However, he changed his oplmon that there was sufficient
- “1ntens1ty or fréquency™ 'of the atlegedly offensive activity to either cause or ‘aggravate epicondylitis or
- CTS. He oplned that there: has’ to be “an element of force” to aggravate those conditions. “And if
* “'there’s ot as much of an ¢lement of force, there has to ‘oe an etement of repetmon” or use of vrbratory '
' _tools or work on an assembly hne : : R

Dr Fernandez noted that there should be at least a ha}f day, or four hours of exposure to _
aggravate those conditions. He also noted that female sufferers of CTS outnumber male sufferers by 6
to.l. In’ addltron the “sweet spot” for developmg the disease is between the ages of the late thirties to
early sixties (Petitioner was 47 at the time of the accident). Smokmg and obesity are risk factors for
developing CTS and Petltroner smoked and was on the verge of being overwelght and she had thyroid
drsease - : . :

On Cross exarnmatlon Dr. Fernandez agreed that Petitioner was rlght—handed and her rzght arm
was being treated. However, 80% of CTS is seen bilaterally. At the time of his examination, Dr.
Fernandez took Petltloner at her word about her work actrvmes and opined that her activities were

. *Thejob description proVided to Dr. _Fernandez was not submrtted into evrdence.
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: sufﬁ01ent to cause or aggravate her neurepathrc condrtrons He drd not beheve the helght of the eounter

- was relevant but using paper-cutting and hole-punchmg machmes could aggravate the condrtlons ifof -
sufﬁcrent duration and frequency However, moving between activities and interspersing nom- offendmg
“activities would lessen the deleterrous effects of those aetwrtres Handhng file folders couid be '
offensrve if they were very heavy : S

On the issue of ﬁngerprlntmg, Dr F emandez noted that 1t was not pmohmg that could be
offensrve ‘but rather the “paim down awkwardness” of the posrtmn The actions would also be more
difficult and require more force if an'inmate was uncooperative. Dr Fernandez indicated Petitioner’s job
activities could cause or aggravate CTS and 1atera1 epicondylitis if done for at least 4 to 5 hours every
day. Finally, in response o Respondent s counsel’ ’s question of how many months; years or days on the -
" job would be relevant in making a causal connectron for carpai tunne} and lateral ep1cendyhtls he replzed
a “mrmmum of srx to elght weeks . > R

D Addztzonal lnformanon

_ Petltloner testlﬁed that she retrred on March 31, 2015 because she could no 1or1ger do her _]Ob
Her condition’ rmproved after her refirement, and she contmued doing work. for the union 1nterm1ttent1y
She ased to pamt wal"is when needed She aIso parnted furmture and drd some furmture restoratron

Regardlng her current conchtron of 1il-be1ng, Petltlener testrﬁed that currentiy she was a lot |
_ _.better but it was still “not perfect ” She cannot do thmgs like sharnpoo carpets, pamt walls, or paint
. prctures It starts aehrng whenever she does repetztrve aotmtres even thmgs hke usmg a screwdnver S

n CONCLUSIONS OF LAW o
A Accrdent&Causal Connectzon K i

In findrng that Petltloner dld not sustam her burden of provmg that her eondrtrons of 111 bemg
were causaliy related to her work activities, the Arbitrator stressed that Petitioner testified to performing
a variety of Workplaee activities. He also noted that Petitioner had an assistant who could perform | many
~of the activities about whreh she testlﬁed and'that Petmoner was away | from the prison for a perlod of -

- severai months Fmally, the Arbrtrator found the’ causatxon ‘opinion of Dr. Fernandez more persuasive

‘that that of Dr. ‘Raven. ‘He stressed that Dr. Raven dad not have a detarled understandlng of Petrtloner S
- work activities, in contrast to Dr. Fernandez -who had the ofﬁcrai jOb desenptron Based on'a review of
the totahty of the record the Commission views the evrdence differently and concludes that Petitioner =~
has established that her aet1v1tres at work contnbuted to her development of carpal turmei syndrome and
iateral eplcondyhtrs : .

T he facts must be closely examlned in repet1t1ve—1n3ury cases to ensure a farr result for ‘ooth the
farthful employee and the employer. Durand v. Industrial Comm n, 224 1L 2d 53, 71 (2006).
Compensation is allowable where an injury is not sudden, but gradual so long as it is linked to the
claimant’s work. Durand, 224 11l. 2d at 66 (citing Peoria County Belwood Nursing Home v. Industrial
Comm’n, 115 111 2d 524, 529 (1987)). The Illinois Supreme Court went on to highlight that “{t}o deny
an employee benefits for a work-related injury that is not the result of a sudden mishap *** penalizes an
employee who falthfully performs JOb dut1es desprte bodrly discomfort and damage ” Dumnd 224 111.
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2d at 66 (ertmg Peona Coumy, 115 Ill 2d at 529 30) It is also well settled that there 1S nO 1ega1
‘requirement that a certain percentage of the workday be spent on repetitive tasks in order to estabhsh the
repetitive nature of a claimanit’s ]ob duties. Fdward Hmes Prec:szon Componems V. Industrzczi Comm n,
356 1L App 3d 186 194 (2(}05) ' : :

I thts case, Petztaoner s descnptlon of her repetltrve work acttvrtres over a 30 year per1od and

_the force and ﬂex1on necessary to execute those activities, was consistent in her testimony at the hearmg,
- to.all of her treatmg phys101ans throughout the medacal records in her 1neldent report and Mr_ Ogden’s
witness statemeit and to Respondent sown Section 12 examiner, Dr, Fernandez. Petitioner consrstently
reported that the increase in her symptoms coincided with her work activities, partrculariy S
ﬁngerprmtmg Her treatmg doctors’ records support Petttloner s testrmony that her repetrtwe work
activities caused her conditions of 111 bemg Indeed, in an’ August 3, 2012 treatment and work status -
- "1etter directed to Respondent Dr. Raven opmed that Petitioner “has carpal turinel and tennis elbow due

to repetltlve motion of ﬁngerprmtmg and it is causing numbness of hand and pain.” Dr. Raveralso.

- completed an 1n1t1al workers’ compensatlon report three days later in which she noted that Petitioner had

three weeks of right elbow pain radiating to her’ lower arm and hand as well as strffness cuimlnatzng on
July 23, 2012 when Petltloner “was ﬁngerprlntlng And Felt sharp pain from elbow to {nght] thumb e
Petltroner also reported pain with activities including openmg doors and lrftmg or staphng, with’
1mprovement on the weekends Dr Raven believed that repetttwe use may increase Petitioner’s
problem, and she malntarned the: opinion 1 that Petitioner’s need to be off work, in physrca! therapy, and
under her medlcai treatment due to her repetrtwe use mjury through May of 201 3

_ Moreover Respondent $ Sectron 12 medwal exammer Dr Femandez oprned that Petrtzoner s
job’ dutres contributed to the development of her condition of ill-being. In his initial report, which was
“issued aﬁer an examination held years after Petitioner’s symptorn onset and after undergomg treatment
Dr. Fernandez noted no malangermg and specrﬁcaﬁy found that Petitioner’s sub]ectrve 1eports were
consistent with. his objectlve findings. -Seven months Iater Dr. Fernandez authored an addendum report
at Respondent’s. request. Therein, he ehanged his opinion that Petitioner’s jOb duties caused her
condition based on his review of a job description and trmesheets provrded to him by Respondent Dr.
Fernandez apparently understood based ¢ on the supplementai documents that Petltroner was not farrly
constantly ﬁngerpnntmg, assembling and disassembling files, or staphng and un- staphng These '
documents are notrcea‘oty absent from the evzdenee submztted by Respondent at the heanng

_ Notwrthstandmg the ornissrons ‘oy Respondent Dr F ernandez s explanatrons for hrs change in
op1n1on and the bases on which he retracted his causal connection opinion, are unpersuasive in this
case. Wzthout the benefit of reviewing such documents the Commission views his reference to the
timesheets as vague and conclusory. Also, Dr. Fernandez expresses surprise that Petitioner still had
residual complaints and he attributes much of his new opinion to the surprising information. ‘However,
Dr. Fernandez’s first report reflects that Petitioner had told him, very clearly, that she had been retrred
for 16 moaths and had 1rnproved ‘out strlI had resrduak compialnts _

Dr. F emandez also conceded at his deposrtlon that the awkwardness of the positing of
Petitioner’s wrist during fingerprinting could be an offensive activity. He believed the flexion of
Petitioner’s palm to be significant at the time that he originally opined that her job duties contributed to
her conditions. Dr. Fernandez also admitted that performmg those duties 4 to 5 hours a day would be
sufﬁcrent to eause or aggravate carpal tunnel syndrorne and lateral eplcondyhtrs Also, perforrnmg the
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- Jo‘o for 6 to 8 Weeks eould be a cause Petrtroner had 1oeen performrng the repetttrve dutres rn‘voivmg
_ force and flexion for srgmﬁcantly longer In hght of the foregorng, the Commrssron does not frnd Dr
: 'Fernandez s changed oplnron to be persuaswe _ : S

Petltloner testiﬁed in detall a’oout the motrons that she had to make to- exeeute partrcul ar

. actmtles at work, and the amount of times that: she did’so, at the heanng, to her treating physicians, and

to Dr. Fernandez T hat Petitioner conceded that she took severa} months of leave for union business i in
2010 but was back at work in 2012 and made ID cards every day does not undérmine the repetttrve
nature of her work or the force and flexion admrttedly required to execute her work aetlvxties for the
years before and thereafter. Petitioner also testified that she had an assistant, but no information was
. prov1ded about the: work this: 1nd1v1dua1 may. have performed or ‘whether it diminished Petitioner’s
' 'repeutlve act1v1t1es in'any way. Indeed Respondent offered no wrtnesses at the hearlng and :makes no -

= _argurnents related to the foregomo -

_ To the extent that Respondent rehes on Petttroner 5 utrhzatron of an assrstant for a perrod of trme o
' to undercut the amount of time that Petitioner spent on’ the repetrtrve awkwardly p051t10ned and - '
forceful activities with her. hand the Commrssron is not persuaded Respondent offered no evrdence to

_ -.eontrovert Petitioner’s testlmony that she engaged in the aforemontloned act1v1t1es to the extent: that she

did. Whﬁe Respondent asked. Petrtroner on Cross, examination ‘about this assistant, it did not introduce -

_ evrdenee undereuttrng the extent of Petitioner’s work as she explamed Indeed, Petrttoner acknowledged
that she had an assistant for a time further enhancmg her’ credtbrhty ‘The Commrssron deehnes to infer,
without ' ev1dence that Petitioner. ceased to perform the offendlng physrcal act1v1tres to.some undeﬁned :
~extent g1v1ng rise to her oceupatlonaily developed repetrtlve trauma injury a8 she testrﬁed as opmed by

-Dr Raven or as. oprned mltrally by Respondent s Sectlon 12 exarnmer Dr Fernandez -

E Based on the entlre record before us, the Commrssron ﬁnds that Petltloner sustarned her burden '
. of proving she suffered i injuries to her right arm and right hand asa result of repetitive trauma and has
’estabhshed a'causal connection based on the opinions and. treating records of Dr. Raven and the 1n1t1a1 :
opmron of Dr Fernandez Therefore, we reverse the Decmon of the Arbrtrator :

B T emporary Total Dzsabzlzty

_ On the i 1ssue of temporary total drsabrhty, in her hrlef Petttroner asserts the record estabhshed
jthat Petltloner was taken off work from August 1,2012 through August o, 2012 and from April 26, 2013
_through May 14,2013, ReSpondent has not found it necessary to file a bnef Nevertheless, the oniy
note in 2012 takrng Petltroner off work was written on August 3, 2012 mdrcatmg that Petitioner would
be off work ‘through August o, 2012 Petrtroner was also taken off work in 2013 from April 26, 2013 to
May 10, 2013 and on May 13, 2013. The medical records reflect Petitioner’s report that she improved
with two weeks of being off work This is broadly consistent with the total period of time that she was
placed off work by her treatrng phys1c1an ‘Thus, the Commission awards Petmoner ternporary total
disability beneﬁts for these perrods of t1me

C Permanenr Parz.‘ral Dtsabrhty

Regardmg perrnanent drsabthty, section 8.1b of the Act requrres permanent partral drsa‘mhty to
: be determmed foilowmg eonsrderatlon of ﬁve factors: (1) the reported leve1 of 1mpamnent pursuant to
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. subsectton (a) (11) the oeoupatlon of the mjured employee (111) the age of the employee at the tlme of _
the i mjury, (iv) the empioyee s fiiture « ‘earning capacity; and (v) evidence of disability corroborated by the
treating medical reeords No single enumerated faotor shail be the sole determmant of drsabrlrty 820

ILCS 305/ 8 1b(b)

Wrth regard to faetor (1), no AMA rmparrment ratrng was submrtted mto evrdence The _
_Commrssmn gwes no welght to thls faetor ' - : el :

_ Wlth regard to factor (11), Pet1t10ner was employed asa eorrectrona"i ofﬁcer for Respondent L
o -_Petltloner was able to return to her pnor 3ob for a perrod of tnne but ultrmately retlred T he ' '
o Commlssron gwes 51gn1ﬁcant weaght to thrs factor : T

: With regard to faetor (rn) Petrtroner was 47 years old at the time of the aecrdent The: E
Comrmssron glves moderate we1ght to thts factor L ' :

: Wrth regard to factor (rv), no evrdence was submrtted mdlcatmg an adverse 1rnpact on
- Petltroner s future earmng capaelty The Comnnssron gtves some wezght to thls faetor S

_ Wlth regard 10 faetor (v) Petltloner developed r1ght eprcondyhtrs and carpal tunnel syndrome as
a resuit of repetitive act1v1t1es at work requiring conservative treatment. ‘The record reﬂeots that :
Petitioner has reached maxrmum medical 1mprovement buti 1s not symptom free desprte her retrrement

o -'The Comrmssron glves srgnrﬁcant we1ght to thlS faotor

Based on the above the Commrssron ﬁnds Petrttonet sustamed a7. 5% loss of use of her rrght o
g arm and 2 5% 1oss of use of her rtght hand pursuant to Sectron 8(e) of the Act ENETRREEE

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Decrsron of the Arbrtrator
dated September 55 2019 denying Petztroner all benefits is reversed The Commrssron ﬁnds Petitioner
sustained her burden of proving a repetrtrve tratima accident that arose out of and i in the course ofher -
_ employment on July 23,2012, and Petitioner proved by a preponderance of the ev1der1ce that her current
condrtlon of ill- bemg is causally reIated to that accrdent ' : . By : :

- IT S FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay Petltloner S
-. 'temporary total dlsabllrty of $925.53 for a period of 2 & 4/7ths weeks, that bemg the perrod of .
' _.temporary total 1ncapae1ty for work under §8(b) of the Act : e L

: IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay medlcai expenses
totahng $11 880 00 pursuant to §8(a) subject to the apphcable medical fee sehedule in §8 2 of'the Act.

o IT IS FURTI—IER ORDERED BY T HE COMMISSION that. Respondent pay to Petltroner
$605.50 as relmbursernent for out~of~pocket medical expenses she mcurred :

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petmoner the .
sum of $712.55 per week fora pen_od of 18.975 weeks, as provided i in §8(e) of the Act, for the reason .
that the injuries sustained caused the loss of the use of 7.5% of the right arm, and the sum of $712.55 per
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- week for a penod of 4. 75 weeks as prov;ded in §8(e) of the Act, for the reason that the 11’1}111‘168
sustamed caused the loss of the use of 2. 5% of the nght hand

IT IS F URTHER ORDERED BY THE COMNHSSION that Respondent pay to Petm oner
interest under §19(n) of the Act if any ' S _ _

_ IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE CO’\/IMISSION Respondent shall have credlt for ali
amounts paid ife any, to or on 1oehalf of Petttloner on account of Sald accndental 1njurzes : :

_ B Pm suant to §I9(f)(1) of the Act, elatms agalnst the State of Illmms are not sub;ect to _}udmal _ |
" rev1ew Therefore no appeal bond is set m thzs case. : :

ERID MarcPaker
- BNFMP/dw EaG R
1 0-6/420 /
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BarbaraN Flores

DISS ENT

I respeotfully d1ssent from the Deczsmn of the Majorlty The Majonty reVersed the Dec1snon of
the Arbltrator ‘who found that Petitionér neither sustained her burden of proving ‘she sustalned a
repetitive trauma accident nor ‘that her condition of ill-being was causally related to her work activities,
and denied compensatton I would have afﬁrmed and adopted the weli reasoned Dec1s1on of the'

! agree w1th the’ Arbztrator that Pe‘ottoner dld not sustam her burden of provmtr a repetlttve
_trauma accident. Asthe Arbltrator noted Pet1t10ner testified to performmg various JOb activities besides

-the ﬁngerprmtmg whlch she 1nd1eated was the most offensive act1v1ty I also agree with the Arb1trator. :

that the oausat1on opmlon ‘of Dr. Fernandez was more persuaswe than that of Dr. Raven. First, Dr.
Raven is a pnmary .care - physman while Dr. Fernandez 1s 'a board- eertlﬁed orthopedic surgeon
spee1a1121ng in upper ‘extremities. - Therefore he has a better understanding -than Dr. Raven of
Petitioner’s condition of ill-being and the causation of such a condition. Second, Dr. Raven simply
recxted Petitioner’s statement about causation without offermg any zndependent explanatlon of how her
activities spee1ﬁcally caused her condition. Tt is interesting that she diagnosed Petitioner with
“fingerprinter’s arm,” a diagnosis 1 have not encountered previously. In contrast, Dr. Fernandez went
into detail about the causes of the Petitioner’s condition of ill-being. In addition, Dr. Fernandez
correctly noted that Petitioner still complamed of symptoms relating to her condition a year and a half
after she rettred Such ongoing complaints would clearly militate agamst the condition being related to
her work activities, espec1a11y in light of the fact that she had no deﬁmtlve treatment for her condltton
ie. no surgery and not even any mjec’uons S S :



12WC 33795
Page 11

The Majorlty dlseounts the oplmons of Dr. Fernandez because Respondem dld not offer its
ofﬁ01a1 job descrlptlon into evidence. In my opinion, the fact that the _]Ob description was not submitted
does not completely undermme Dr. Femandez persuasivencss. .- He expiamed why the activities that
were noted in the job desempnon did not support the allegation that the condition ‘was Work_ re]ated and
he cited Petitioner’s co-morbidities, of gender, hlstory of smoking, and thyroid diseasé. The Majority
'-baswaHy reversed the Decxszon of the Arbitrator because Respondent failed to submit its job description
‘into evidence. ‘In'my opinion, in so doing the Majorlty has effeetwely shu&ed the burden of proof in this
€ase. Under the Act, cEalman’ss speelﬁcally bear the burden of proving every aspect of - their claim
"1nc1ud1ng accident. and causation.. .Here in my opinion, the Majonty has reversed the Decnszon of the
 Arbitrator and awarded benefits. because Respondent had not successfuliy proved that - Petitioner’s
condition was unrelated to her work aetlvxtzes I do not beheve that is approprlate Therefore I dissent
from the Decmon of the Majorxty ' S A : SRR

I would have found that Petltioner d}d not sustam her burden of prov;ng she suftered a repetltzve' :
trauma accident or that her condition of ill- bemg was causally related to her Work actmtles affirmed
and adopted the well-reasoned Decision of the Arbltrator and demed compensatmn Therefore 1
respectﬁdly dlssent from the Dec1s1on of the Majorrty ' L : : :

DLS/dw
46

" Deborah L." Simipson
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